
Business Markets

675 West Peachtree Street
Atlanta, Georgia 30375

**Carrier Notification
SN91086101**

Date: May 22, 2006

To: Competitive Local Exchange Carriers (CLEC)

Subject: CLECs – (Documentation/Guides) - Update to the BellSouth Local Ordering Handbook (LOH) Version 22.0A, New Local Service Ordering Guide 10 (LSOG 10) and EDI Local Mechanization Specifications 10 (ELMS 10) for Release 22.0

This is to advise that BellSouth will implement the following changes to update documentation in the LOH Version 22.0A for ELMS 10 Release 22.0.

CCP Number	Description Of The Change
2377	DFDT field (LSR Form/Screen): Update the Valid Entries information to show the hour for military time is "00 - 23".
2379	NPQTY and PORTED NBR field (NP Form/screen): NPQTY field - Update Data Characteristics from "5 numeric characters" to "Up to 5 numeric characters". PORTED NBR field - Add Valid Entry Notes.
2383	REQTYP J / ACT = R SASN field: Move SASN field from 'Optional' to "Conditional" to align with CU Note 8: When REQTYP = J, ACT = R, SASN is required when EUMI = Y.
2386	LSP AUTH, LSP AUTH DATE, LSP AUTH NAME (REQTYP B): Add LSP AUTH, LSP and AUTH DATE fields to Conditional (row), LSP AUTH NAME to the Optional (row) R/C/O tables for REQTYP B products (INP & LNP). Update Conditional Usage and Business Rules information for the LSP AUTH, LSP AUTH DATE, LSP AUTH NAME fields LSNP Form/Screen section of Data Dictionary.

Please refer to the attachments for specific details of the changes listed above.

These changes will be reflected in the next update of the ELMS 10 Release 22.0/LOH Version 22.0B, scheduled to be posted Friday, May 26, 2006.

A summary of all changes within this document will be listed in the **Summary of Changes** section.

This update can be found on the BellSouth Interconnection Services Web site in the Local Exchange Ordering Guides (LEO) at:

http://interconnection.bellsouth.com/reference_library/guides/html/leo.html#loh

Please contact your BellSouth local support manager with any questions.

Sincerely,

ORIGINAL SIGNED BY KRISTEN E. SHORE

Kristen E. Shore – Director
Business Markets

Attachments

CCP 2377 Attachment Listed Below

CRB 4901
CCP: 2377
Release: 22
MAP: ELMS10
LSR Data Dictionary

DFDT

Desired Frame Due Time
LSR Form / Screen
LSOG10 / ELMS10

Definition

Identifies the desired frame cutover time.

Definition Notes

Note 1: The time indicated in this field will reflect the local time of the end user's location(s).

Valid Entries

HHMM, HHMM-HHMM

Military format: where HH must be numerics from **00 - 23** and MM must be numerics ranging from 00-59.

Deleted: **01-24**

Valid Entry Notes

Note 1: When the CHC field is populated with a Y, the DFDT must be a single time entry.

Data CharacteristicsElectronic

Up to 9 alpha/numeric characters

Manual

Up to 6 alpha/numeric characters

ExamplesElectronic

1300-1700

1300

Manual

1300

Conditional Usage Notes

Note 1: This field is prohibited when the ACT is N, except for REQ TYP A Transport Products when a hot cut is being requested with ACT = N and ACT = D LSRs.

Note 2: Prohibited when the REQ TYP is A and the ACT = C, D, or T, except for REQ TYP A Transport Products when a hot cut is being requested with ACT = N and ACT = D LSRs.

Note 3: Prohibited when the REQ TYP is E (Non-Complex) or M (Non-Complex).

Note 4: Prohibited when the REQ TYP is E with 2nd character TOS of H and the ACT is C, D, T, V or W.

Note 5: Prohibited when the REQ TYP is N and the ACT is W.

Note 6: Prohibited when the CC or NNSP field is populated with a wireless OCN.

Note 7: Prohibited when the REQTY is A for ACT=V and the product is Digital Data Designed (DS0)

Electronic

Note 8: [BULK Option 1 and Bulk Single LSR Arrangement Option 2] Prohibited when the BOPI field is populated.

Note 9: Prohibited when the request is an LNP to Resale UNE-P/WLP Migration for REQTY E, M, P and N. And when the SC field is "LCSL".

Manual

Note 10: Required when REQTY is E (Complex) and the Act is C or V for Frame Relay with speed changes.

Business Rules

Rule 1: For projects, frame due times are negotiated with the CLEC.

Rule 2: For non-projects, frame due time indicates the specific time the request is to be worked.

Rule 3: When the CHC is populated and the DFDT is populated, the DFDT field must be a single entry; of an hour and minute and not a span of time.

Rule 4: When DFDT is populated with a time requested for time specific hot-cut, the time requested may be changed by BST to the next available time slot. This time slot assignment may be the same day or next business day. If assigned a different time and/or due date, the changed appointment will be reflected in the FOC.

Rule 5: When the REQTY is A or B, and the information populated in the NC field begins with TY or TX, the CHC field is also required.

Manual

Rule 6: For REQTY A Transport Products: Non-Channelized DS3, STS-1 and IOC, Unbundled Dark Fiber (UDF), Ordinarily Combined UNEs (OCU) and EELs, Commingled Non-Channelized DS3, STS-1 and IOC connected to Wholesale, Commingled Ordinarily Combined UNEs (OCU) and EELs connected to Wholesale, and Single bandwidth Commingled, if a hot cut is being requested with ACT = N and ACT = D LSRs a specific time may be entered in the DFDT field. The N and D LSRs must also be RPON'd.

***** End of definition for field DFDT *****

CCP 2379 Attachment Listed Below

NPQTY

Number Portability Quantity
NP Form / Screen
LSOG10 / ELMS10

Definition

Identifies the quantity of ported numbers involved in this service request.

Definition Notes

None

Valid Entries

00000 – 99999

Valid Entry Notes

None

Data Characteristics

Up to 5 numeric characters

Deleted: 5 numeric characters

Examples

00008

Conditional Usage Notes

None

Business Rules

Rule 1: When populated the NPQTY quantity must match the total number of telephone numbers being ported out on the LSR.

***** End of definition for field NPQTY *****

PORTED NBR

Ported Telephone Number
NP Form / Screen
LSOG10 / ELMS10

Definition

Identifies the telephone number to be ported.

Definition Notes

None

Valid Entries

None

Valid Entry Notes

- Note 1: When a range of numbers is populated in the PORTED NBR field, the range must be consecutive numbers).
- Note 2: When a consecutive range of telephone numbers is populated in this field the REQ TYP must be C and the NPT must be D.
- Note 3: A range of numbers is prohibited for REQ TYP B.

Deleted: DID

Note 4: The 2nd character of the TOS must be the TOS of record when submitting a consecutive range of number.

Deleted: Note 4: The 2nd character of the TOS must be Q when submitting a consecutive range of number.

- Note 5: The LSR shall not exceed 2000 telephone numbers.

Electronic

- Note 6: The 11th character, if populated in the PORTED NBR field must be a hyphen followed by four numerics when entering a range of telephone numbers.

Data Characteristics**Electronic**

10 numeric characters or 15 alpha/numeric characters

Manual

Up to 15 numeric characters (including optional hyphens)

Examples**Electronic**

2016991234
2016991234-1254

Manual

2016991234
201-699-1234
201-699-1234-3234

Conditional Usage Notes

None

Business Rules

- Rule 1: When NPT is not D (LNP), this field indicates a number being disconnected when porting a multi-line account not all numbers are to be ported.

Electronic

- Rule 2: When a range of telephone numbers is populated in this field the LEAN or LEATN field is



Attachment
SN91086101

prohibited.

Manual

Rule 3: Telephone numbers may be sent in consecutive ranges on a fax LSR.
***** End of definition for field PORTED NBR *****

CCP 2383 Attachment Listed Below**Directory Listing****RCO Tables****ACT Tables: Reqtyp J, Directory Listing****ACT= R: LSR****Required**

ACT	BAN1	CC
CCNA	D/TSENT	DDD
INIT	INIT-FAX NO.	INIT-TEL NO.
PG_OF_ (M)	PON	REQTYP
SC	TOS	

Conditional

AN	ATN	BI1
CUST	IMPCON-TEL NO.	NOR
RCC (E)	RPON	SUP
VER		

Optional

CIC	IMPCON*	REMARKS
-----	---------	---------

ACT= R: EU**Required**

NAME	PG_OF_ (M)	PON (M)
------	------------	---------

Conditional

AAI	AN (M)	ATN (M)
EAN	EATN	LD1
LD2	LD3	LV1
LV2	LV3	SANO
SASD	SASF	SASS
SATH	VER (M)	CITY
STATE	ZIP	SASN

Optional

EUMI

Deleted: **SASN**

CCP 2386 Attachment Listed Below

CRB: 4909

CCP: 2386

MAP: ELMS10

Release: 22

Please make the following changes to REQ TYP B Product R/C/O tables:

For the REQ TYP B Products and ACT Types please add the LSP Fields to the R/C/O tables as indicated below.

ACT V

INP Designed Analog Loop

Non-Designed Analog Loop

Unbundled Copper Loop - Designed

Unbundled Copper Loop - Non-Designed

xDSL

Digital Designed Basic Rate ISDN

Digital Data Designed Loop (DSO)

Add to Conditional:

LSP AUTH (M)**LSP AUTH DATE (M)**

Add to Optional:

LSP AUTH NAME (M)

ACT V

LNP, Designed Analog Loop

Non-Designed

UCL Designed

UCL Non-Designed

xDSL

Digital Designed Basic Rate ISDN

Add to Conditional:

LSP AUTH**LSP AUTH DATE**

Add to Optional:

LSP AUTH NAME



Attachment
SN91086101

ACT V

LNP BSLA - Designed Analog Loop

Non-Designed

UCL Designed

UCL Non-Designed

xDSL

Digital Data Designed Basic Rate ISDN

Add to Conditional:

LSP AUTH (E)

LSP AUTH DATE (E)

Add to Optional:

LSP AUTH NAME (E)

CRB: 4809
CCP: 2386
MAP: ELMS10
Release: 22
LSR Data Dictionary

LSP AUTH

Local Service Provider Authorization
LSR Form / Screen
LSOG10 / ELMS10

Definition

Indicates the company code of the Local Service Provider that is providing existing service and has authorized the change to a new service provider.

Definition Notes

None

Valid Entries

Company Code = 4 alpha/numerics

Valid Entry Notes

None

Data Characteristics

4 alpha/numeric characters

Examples

1234
A123

Conditional Usage Notes

Note 1: Required when the 2nd character of the TOS is P.

NOTE 2: For REQTYPE A & B, LSP AUTH is required when the CFA or Cable ID / Chan Pair belongs to another CLEC than the one submitting the LSR and a Blanket LOA is not attached to a manual LSR.

Business Rules

Manual

- Rule 1: Optional when the REQTYPE is A and the NC Code begins with LY**, LX**, HC** or TY** and a signed Blanket LOA agreement is on file.
- Rule 2: Required when Third Party Collocation is requested and an individual LOA is not submitted with the LSR.
- Rule 3: Prohibited when the product being requested is IOC, EEL or Ordinarily Combined UNE.

***** End of definition for field LSP AUTH *****

LSP AUTH DATE

Local Service Provider Authorization Date
LSR Form / Screen
LSOG10 / ELMS10

Definition

Identifies the date that appears on the LSP authorization provided to the new service provider.

Definition Notes

None

Valid EntriesElectronic

1st and 2nd characters = 2 digit century

3rd and 4th characters = 2 digit year

5th and 6th characters = 2 digit month

7th and 8th characters = 2 digit day

Manual

1st and 2nd characters = Two Digit Month (01-12)

3rd character = Always a Hyphen

4th and 5th characters = Two Digit Day (01-31)

6th character = Always a Hyphen

7th and 8th characters = Two Digit Century (20-99)

9th and 10th characters = Two Digit Year (00-99)

Valid Entry Notes

None

Data CharacteristicsElectronic

8 numeric characters

Manual

10 alpha/numeric characters (including two hyphens)

ExamplesElectronic

20031201

Manual

05-12-2001

Conditional Usage Notes

Note 1: Required when the LSP AUTH field is populated.

Business Rules

Rule 1: When the REQ TYP is B this field must reflect the date the Blanket LOA was signed.

Manual

Rule 2: When the REQ TYP is A this field must reflect the date the Blanket LOA was signed.

***** End of definition for field LSP AUTH DATE *****

Deleted: 1

LSP AUTH NAME

Local Service Provider Authorization Name
LSR Form / Screen
LSOG10 / ELMS10

Definition

Identifies the name of the person who signed the authorization letter.

Definition Notes

None

Valid Entries

None

Valid Entry Notes

None

Data Characteristics

Up to 15 alpha/numeric characters

Examples

JANE SMITH

Conditional Usage Notes

- Note 1: Required when the LSP AUTH field is populated, otherwise optional except (REQTYP A and B).
- Note 2: Required for REQTYP A, ACTs = N, C, or D for HFS Unbundled CO-based Line Splitting (BST -Owned Splitter) and HFS Unbundled CO-based Line Splitting (DLEC -Owned Splitter).

Deleted: w

Business Rules

Rule 1: When the REQTYP is B, this field reflects the contact name from the Blanket LOA and is optional.

Manual

- Rule 2: When the REQTYP is A, this field reflects the contact name from the Blanket LOA and is optional.

Deleted: i

***** End of definition for field LSP AUTH NAME *****